
1 

                             REGIONAL SCHOOL UNIT 19 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

                                   
                      ****TUESDAY, MAY 19, 2020*** 
                     VIRTUAL MEETING  6:30 PM 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/92297561035?pwd=R0NNSzEvUE4vRmwybTZ2NXFLSGU4Zz09 

I. Opening of Meeting 
A. Flag Salute 
B. Adjustments to Agenda 
C. Approval of Minutes of April 14, 2020                                                          *Action 

 
 

II. Public Comment 
 

 
III. Reading of Communications  

A. Administrative Communications                  
B. Superintendent/Board Communications 

 
 

IV.   Reports 
A. Superintendent 
B. Board Chair 

 
 

V.    Report of Special Committees 
A. Budget/Finance Committee                  April 13 & 27, 2020, May 12, 2020                                                      
B. Building Committee                           May 13, 2020 
C. Education Committee      None 
D. Policy Committee                             April 28, 2020 

          First Reading of Policies                          *Action 
1.  JEA  Compulsory Student Attendance 
2.  JLCDB-R Naloxone Administration Procedure 
3.  JLF  Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect 

          Second Reading of Policies                            *Action 
1.  JLCDB Administration of Naloxone in Schools 

                                              
E. Transportation Committee                                 No Meeting  

  F.    Tri-County Vocational Meeting 
  G.   Negotiations Committee                         No Meeting             
  H.   Extra-Curricular Ad Hoc Committee                 

I. Resource Officer Ad Hoc Committee    May 4, 2020 
  J.    Pandemic Ad Hoc Committee   April 29, 2020 & May 7, 2020 

             

https://zoom.us/j/92297561035?pwd=R0NNSzEvUE4vRmwybTZ2NXFLSGU4Zz09


2 

                     
                         

VI. Old Business - None 
         

          
VII.   New Business     

A. 2020 - 2021 Budget              *Action 
1.  Consideration of Budget/Finance Committee’s Recommendation for the 

               2020 - 2021 Budget                                                                                         
            2.  Approval of District Budget Meeting and Validation Dates         
            3.  Approve the Warrants for the District Budget Meeting and Validation 
                 Referendum and Signing of Warrants  
                   
B. Staff Resignations               * Action 

1.  Sara Kent   Guidance Counselor NRH 
2.  Aimee Feeney Grade K  SEBVES 
3.  Sharon Gordon Grade 4  SEBVES 
                                                                                                                                

C. Staff Nominations 
1. Carissa Pacheco Grade 1  SEVES        *Action 
2. First, Second, and Third Year Probationary Teachers and                            *Action 

                  First Year Continuing Contract Teachers   
 
D. Staff Appointments  

1. Caitlyn Newhall Ed Tech II SPED NRMS 
2. Sharon Gordon Ed Tech III Library NRMS 

 
E. Staff Transfers 

 
 

VIII. Future Agenda Items 
 

 
IX. Next Meeting Dates 

 
 

X. Adjournment 
 
 
 

A.D.A. NOTICE:  If you have a special need that must be met to allow you to fully participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Office of the Superintendent at least two (2) days prior to this meeting. 
IF the district is closed for weather or other issues, the Board meeting will be on the next regularly 
scheduled meeting date. 
 

 



 

1 

Regional School Unit 19 
Board of Directors’ Minutes (Virtual Meeting) 

April 14, 2020                  6:30 PM 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mark Hanson, Jennifer Watson (Phone), Corinna Caron, Christopher 
Easton, Josh Kezer, Ryan Parker, Mark Guzzi, Leland Youngberg, Willian McDonald, Robin 
McNeil, Veronica Nichols, Kenneth Keailher, Kenneth Sands, Jason Scholten, Stacy Lasselle, 
Chad Stratton 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Excused:   Charles Cossar, Paul Carter 
                                    Unexcused:  Celia Demos 
                                       
TOTAL MEMBERS PRESENT:   847 
TOTAL MEMBERS ABSENT:   151 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  District Staff and Members of the Community 
 

NOTE: All votes recorded by roll call  
 
 

I. Opening of Meeting 
A. Flag Salute was rendered. 
B. Adjustments to Agenda - None 
C. Approval of Board Minutes 

A motion was made by Robin McNeil to accept the Board Meeting Minutes from 
March 24, 2020, seconded by Bill McDonald and voted unanimously. 
 

 
II.       Public Comment - None  

 
 

III.      Reading of Communications 
A. Administrative Communications - Mary Nadeau - Nokomis - The structured schedule 

is working well.  There is still a cohort of about 40 students who do not have internet.  
Proud of what everyone is doing.  Ellen Surprenant - Somerset Elementary - 
Struggling with power outages.  89% participation from students.   70% have signed 
into Google Classroom and are turning in assignments.   Jane Stork - EDS - Work 
completion is having its ups and downs.  Ended the week with a beach party.  Still 
having lots of issues with technology.  Angela Brown - NRMS -  Remote learning 
moving along for Phase II.  Teachers are doing an excellent job.  More engagement 
has been logged with more devices going out.  Very few who have not had some kind 
of contact.   Laura Donahue - Sebasticook Valley Elementary School - Teachers sites 
are up and going.  Also struggling with power outages.   Liz Mares - SPED - Students 
are largely engaging.  SPED teachers working with regular ed to not overwhelm 
parents and students.  Packet work more than Google classroom, but their virtual 



 

2 

interaction is good.  Attending Zoom meetings with state and national SPED directors.  
Ed Techs are accessing PD on Google Classroom.   Lori Marrow - Curriculum - 
Attending weekly ESSA meetings.  Trying to determine what next year’s allocations 
will look like.  How much can we use this year due to not being in school.   Suzanne 
Nowinski - Adult Ed - Adult Ed is plugging away.  Lower level literacy meeting on 
Facebook. One-on-one testing will start after vacation.   

 
 

   IV.       Reports  
A. Superintendent  

Mr. Hammer - Bulk meal delivery will start during April vacation week on Tuesday 
and Thursday, and then switch to Monday and Wednesday delivery days.  This will 
give Food Service and Bus Drivers some time off.  We have served over 40,000 meals 
as of this meeting.  Mr. Hammer connected with the Commissioner of Education this 
past Friday and is working with the Penquis Superintendents group and our great 
Administrative Team to manage as well as we can.  

 
 B.   Board Chair   

Mr. Easton  - Getting good at rolling with the punches, with everything that is thrown 
at us.   
 

 
V.        Report of Special Committees 

A. Budget/Finance Committee    March 30 & April 6, 2020 
                   Communication presented 

B. Building Committee    April 8, 2020 
         Communication presented 

C. Education Committee    March 3, 2020 
                    Communication presented 

D. Policy Committee    April 7, 2020  
                    First Reading of Policies 

1. JLCDB Administration of Naloxone  
A motion was made by Robin McNeil to approve the first reading of the above 
policies, seconded by Chad Stratton, and voted unanimously. 
 

                   Second Reading of Policies  
1. ACAD Hazing  
2. ADA-E Mission & Vision  
3. BEDH Public Participation at Board Meetings/Committee Meetings  
4. DJ Bidding/Purchasing Requirements  
5. DJH Purchasing and Contracting: Procurement Staff Code of Conduct 
6. DJ-R Federal Procurement Manual  
7. GBJ Personnel Records and Files  
8. GCG Long Term Substitute Compensation Policy Classroom Teacher Only  
9. IHBB Gifted and Talented Education  



 

3 

A motion was made by Robin McNeil to approve the second reading of the above 
policies as a block, seconded by Chad Stratton, and voted unanimously. 

 
E. Transportation Committee   No meeting 

            F.     Tri-County Vocational Meeting   No Meeting  
            G.    Negotiations Committee               No Meeting 
            H.    Extra-Curricular Ad Hoc Committee       No meeting 

I.    School Resource Officer Ad Hoc Committee No meeting 
 

A motion was made by Veronica Nichols to create a Pandemic Committee, seconded by 
Ken Sands and voted, 10 for and 5 against (Corinna Caron, Leland Youngberg, Bill 
McDonald, Kenneth Keailher, Jason Scholten).  Motion passed. 
 

 
VI.      Old Business - None 

 
  
VII.     New Business      

A. Continuity of Education Plans - Continue remote learning and refer to CDC 
guidelines.    

       
B. Election of Superintendent  

A motion was made by Chad Stratton to approve the Superintendent’s salary for         
2020-21, subject to budget approval, to extend the contract by 2 years (through June 
2025), and to submit the Annual Certification of Superintendent, seconded by Robin 
McNeil and voted unanimously. 

 
C.   Extra-Curricular Spring Stipend 
      A motion was made by Jason Scholten to pay spring sports stipends at ⅓ the rate of 

the salary, seconded by Bill McDonald and voted 14 for and 1 against (Kenneth 
Keailher).  Motion passed. 

 
D.   Staff Resignations - None 

            E.   Staff Appointments - None 
F.   Staff Transfers - None     

 
 

VIII.     Future Agenda Items 
           
 
IX.     Next Meeting Dates 

The next Board meeting is scheduled for May 19, 2020.              
            

 
 

X.      Adjournment 



 

4 

          The meeting was adjourned at 8:01 PM. 
  
 
           Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
           Mike Hammer 
           Secretary to the Board 
 
          Note Taker:  Darcey LaPrade 



Finance/Budget Committee Minutes  
                             April 13, 2020   

Virtual Meeting (Zoom)     6:30 PM 
 

 
Members Present: Bill MacDonald, Robin McNeil, Corinna Caron, Ryan Parker, Mark         

Guzzi, Leland Youngberg, Veronica Nicholson 
 
Members Absent:    St. Albans Vacancy  
  
Others Present: Mike Hammer, Joe Chadbourne, Liz Mares, Lori Merrow, Ellen           

Surprenant, Suzanne Nowinski, Josh Grant, Laura Donahue,       
Jane Stork, Dean Cray, Evelyn Curtis, Maxine Pare 

 
 
I. Public Comment - None  
 
 

II. Review Financials - Joe presented financials for year-to-date March. Revenue and            
expenditures are in line with the budget at this point in time. March was a mixed                
month of on sight learning and remote learning. April will be a full month of remote                
learning, and after April we should be able to forecast the remainder of the year               
better. Food Service is seeing an increase in revenue with the participation levels             
of students under the Summer Food program. This additional revenue will help            
offset revenue shortages from earlier in the year. 

 
III. Budget Review - The 2021 budget continued to be reviewed. The Committee             

maintained that the local share of the budget should not exceed a 2% increase. It               
was confirmed that a Title position previously budgeted as district funds can be             
changed to be funded by the Title grant. The Facilities Director has also provided              
approximately $40,000 in savings from what was previously budgeted. Mike and           
Joe will continue to work with administrators to find another $150,000 in reductions             
to meet the Committee's budget goal. 

 
IV. Budget Timeline/Meeting Schedule- Joe distributed a revised budget timeline.          

The June primary election being pushed to July 14th gives the Committee some             
additional time to work through the budget. The Committee added a few additional             
meetings to review the budget and plan to bring a budget to the Board in June. The                 
public will vote in their towns on the budget on July 14th. 

 



 
 

 
III.     Other -None 
 
 
IV.      Adjournment  

      The meeting was adjourned at 7:38 pm. 
 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      Joe Chadbourne, Business Manager 
 

 



 

Finance/Budget Committee Minutes                                  
                             April 27, 2020               

Virtual Meeting (Zoom)     6:30 PM 
 

 
Members Present:  Bill MacDonald, Robin McNeil, Corinna Caron, Ryan Parker, Mark         

Guzzi, Leland Youngberg, Veronica Nicholson 
 
Members Absent:    Charles Cossar      
                       
Others Present:       Mike Hammer, Joe Chadbourne, Kenneth Kealiher, Liz Mares, Lori 

Merrow, Ellen Surprenant, Angela Brown, Laura Donahue, Jane 
Stork, Suzanne Nowinski, Maxine Pare, Josh Grant 

 
 
I. Public Comment - None    
 
 

II.   Budget Review - Budget reductions were presented to the Committee.  The reductions 
consisted of moving a Title position to grant funding; reductions in maintenance cost 
spread out over repairs, electricity, snow removal and lawn care; removing a pole 
vault pit from next year’s budget which will be purchased with current year funds;  and 
removing an added position from the high school (new science teacher added but a 
retiring english position eliminated).  Special Education reduced out of district 
placement expense and wage increases for those staff not under a collective 
bargaining agreement. All of these reductions totaled $266,000.  These reductions 
brought the increase in the local share of the budget to 2% which was the 
Committee's target.  Discussion took place surrounding state funding to towns and 
schools in the next fiscal year and the impact on the budget process.    Prior to our 
next scheduled meeting, current year spending will be reviewed to determine if any 
items budgeted in 2021 can be purchased in the current fiscal year. 

 
       The School Resource Officer position was also discussed. The SRO Committee will 

meet on May 6th to provide guidance on this newly created position in the budget.  
The Budget Committee will meet next on May 12th to discuss the SRO position and 
discuss any changes in budget targets.   

 
       The Committee authorized the distribution to the towns of the projected assessments 

based on the current 2021 budget to give the towns guidance on their budgeting.  
 



 

 
III.     Other - Request was made to extend our relationship with our current auditors RKO 

for one year.  The Committee agreed to this extension.   
 
          Signing of warrants was discussed and Ryan and Robin agreed to schedule times to 

sign warrants at the central office. 
 
 
IV.      Adjournment  

      The meeting was adjourned at 7:35 pm. 
 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      Joe Chadbourne, Business Manager 
 



 
 
 
 

1 
 

Policy Committee Virtual Meeting Minutes 
April 28, 2020      6:30 PM 

 
 
Members Present:     Robin McNeil, Celia Demos, Christopher Easton, Kenneth 

Kealiher, Veronica Nicholson, Leland Youngberg 
 
Members Excused:     
Members Absent:     Chuck Cossar, Ken Sands 
                  
Others Present:     Mike Hammer, Josh Grant, Maxine Pare, Suzanne Nowinski, 

Evelyn Curtis  
 
 

I. Public Comment - None 
 
 
 II. Policies 

A. Policy Review  
      1.    JEA   Compulsory Student Attendance                 

Several changes were made to comply with new legislation.  This policy 
is ready to be presented to the Board for a first reading.  
 

                      2.   JLF  Reporting Child Abuse and Neglect 
Changes were noted to be in compliance with new legislation.  Policy 
is ready for a first reading by the Board. 

 
            B.       New  
                      1.    JLCDB-R           Naloxone Administration Procedure      

 2.   JLCDB-R1  Naloxone Administration Protocol    
The Committee combined the two into one procedure by deleting page 
2 of the procedure and inserting the protocol.  This is ready to be 
presented to the Board for a first reading. 

 
 

III.         Other - Robin asked members to notify her or Mike if they wanted any particular    
policy to be reviewed. 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 

2 
 

V. Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:10 pm. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Mike Hammer 
Superintendent of Schools 

 
     






























